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Request For Information
NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH
Issuing Institute or Center: Office of the Chief IT Architect (OCITA)
This Request for Information (RFI) is for information and planning purposes only and shall not be construed as either a solicitation or obligation on the part of the National Institutes of Health (NIH), its Institutes or Centers.  The purpose of this RFI is to help the NIH understand market availability, technical characteristics, and functionality of wiki solutions, tools, or products capable of satisfying the technical, functional, and/or operational characteristics described in this RFI.  NIH will use this market research information in its evaluation of potential solutions for implementing a wiki.
NIH welcomes comments from all interested parties on each or all of the questions contained in this RFI.  NIH does not intend to award a contract on the basis of responses nor otherwise pay for the preparation of any information submitted or NIH’s use of such information.  Acknowledgment of receipt of responses will not be made, nor will respondents be notified of the NIH's evaluation of the information received.  
Description of Objective

NIH seeks information on available web collaboration technologies that enable users to collaborate on the content of a shared workspace.
Description of Environment
NIH is a highly collaborative environment that requires web-based collaboration both internal to the NIH organization as well as with external partners and non-affiliated parties that may include, but are not limited to: universities, doctors, researchers, research subjects, and advocacy groups. Authentication and authorization capabilities and integration must be provided to accommodate diverse security and confidentiality requirements. Both highly structured and ad hoc types of collaboration must be enabled by these technologies. Because the NIH collaborates with many external parties, the client platforms that must be supported by the recommended products are unknown and diverse.
Description of Evaluation Criteria:
In order to support its evaluation and selection of potential solutions for wiki implementations, the NIH seeks information on available technologies within the wiki technical domain.  For the purpose of this RFI, the NIH defines the scope of this technical domain as products supporting web collaboration through shared workspaces defined as wikis, enabling users to collaborate in forming the content of a website. This domain includes hosting and/or application products that support wiki technologies.
The information gathered through this market research, combined with information gathered through other research and analysis methodologies, will provide the NIH with important decision support information in its evaluation.  NIH will base the selection of potential solutions on the following evaluation criteria:
· Availability – the availability, failover and performance of the technology as it relates to server uptime, client uptime and network uptime.

· Cost – estimated total cost of ownership (based on market research statistics and independent research opinions).

· Existing NIH installed base – NIH experience with the technology and the use and adoption of the standard throughout NIH.
· Features and Functionality – the capabilities provided by the product as reflected in responses to this RFI.  

· Fit with existing NIH standards, technologies, and systems
 – any known interoperability issues a potential standard may have with existing technology standards.
· Flexibility – the breadth of the standard’s applicability to multiple NIH stakeholder classes.

· Implementation Effort and Complexity – The level of effort and complexity associated with the implementation of the product in a production environment.

· Industrial installed base – the use and adoption of the standard throughout industry in general (both commercial and public enterprises).

· Maintainability/supportability – the effort and specialized skill sets required to support a technology.
· Product Life cycle – evaluates the expected time the product will be in use and supported by the vendor and the ability to maintain currency of its functionality and operation.  A longer life cycle is desirable from a training and hardware investment perspective.
· Security – the ability and/or effectiveness and fit of the technology within the NIH security environment.

· Strategic value – evaluates the breadth of product capabilities beyond the core requirement, and the extent to which these capabilities can be leveraged by NIH to enhance the value of NIH’s investment in the product.
· Usability and Accessibility – the usability and accessibility of the product and services according to existing federal statutes and established best practices.

· Vendor viability
 – the health of the product vendor in terms of its stability, projected longevity, and likelihood it will exist in the future to support the product and later versions of the product.
It is important to reiterate that this RFI is not intended to gather information needed to address each of the decision criteria above.  Received data will be combined with information gathered through other research and analysis methodologies to support NIH’s overall evaluation.
Request for Information:
To support the NIH’s market research, the NIH requests responses to the following questions.  Please limit your response to no more than 15 pages (not including illustrations) in Microsoft Word format. Please provide your responses directly in this RFI template.  Additionally, please complete the Microsoft Excel attachment that accompanies this RFI (responses to the Excel attachment are to be entered directly into the spreadsheets and submitted in Microsoft Excel format). Submit both documents together and send to enterprisearchitecture@mail.nih.gov.  All responses must be received by 4:00 PM EDT on Friday, May 19.

General Information

1) Please provide the following:
a. Your organization’s name      
b. Your organization’s website       
c. Contact Name       
d. Contact Telephone       
e. Contact E-mail address       
f. Number of employees in your organization       
g. Your organization’s current annual revenue       
h. Are the products you are considering included in the GSA Schedule? Are they available on another GWAC such as NITAAC?      
2) To what extent are you limited to conduct business under the Buy American Act with the Federal Government?      
Product Information

3) Given the definition and scope of this technical domain (i.e., wiki as defined above), please identify any product(s) or solution(s) you offer that fit within this domain.  For each product/solution you identify, please provide the following information as available/applicable:

a. Product/solution name  
b. Date of product’s first production release (v1.0, not beta versions)  
c. Current production version  
d. Planned product schedule (i.e. future product enhancements, upgrade cycle of the product,  next major release plan)  
e. Revenue based on product sales  
f. Number of customers, by private and public sectors, using the version of the product being considered in this RFI  
g. Please discuss its features, functionality, and capabilities  
4) Please discuss how your product(s) or solution(s) satisfy the evaluation criteria described above.       
5) Do you currently have any products, solutions, or implementations at the NIH today?  If so, to what extent (e.g., Which Institutes or Centers? Which specific products?).       
6) Please indicate the depth and breadth of this product’s (these products’) usage throughout industry in general (i.e., beyond NIH).  How many customers (in terms of organizations) are using this product?  In what industries?       
Costs and Fees Structure

7) Pricing and implementation.
a. Provide an overview of the costs and fee structure associated with your solution offerings for a large-scale federal solution.       
b. Provide specific solution cost information, including software licensing, annual maintenance, discount schedules (if applicable), implementation and deployment costs.      
c. Please explain your pricing model(s) (i.e., license-based, unit-based, usage, etc).      
d. Provide any training and/or certification program fees.       
e. Provide any documentation fees and media type.       
8) What capabilities are included in your basic wiki product offering?  What functionality must be purchased separately?      
Services

9) Provide an overview of your professional services/consulting services supporting the implementation of your products.       
10) Address product support services for NIH, external partners and non-affiliated individuals (i.e., help desk, security support, maintenance, etc.).       
Technical
11) Provide an overview of your solution’s architecture and technology components.      
12) Describe the software and hardware infrastructure requirements associated with implementation of your product.       
13) List the programming languages for which your product provides Application Programming Interfaces (APIs).       
14) Describe the APIs and functionality your product provides in support of customization.       
15) What client-side software is required for the implementation of the tool?       
16) Provide an overview of how your solution leverages current industry best practices or future trends as these relate to wiki technologies?       
17) How does your product(s) or solution(s) address scalability when transaction volumes or number of users increases?  What impact, if any, does scalability (increase or decrease) have on cost?       
18) Please describe how your product supports federal government usability and accessibility requirements as described in Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act.        
19) Please disclose any known security vulnerabilities inherent in your product(s) and current mitigation plans.       
NIH welcomes responses from all individuals and organizations on each or all of these questions.  Responses are due, in MS Word format, by 4:00 PM EDT on Friday, May 19, 2006.  Responses will not be accepted after this time.
� For information about existing technologies at NIH, please refer to the enterprise architecture website at � HYPERLINK "http://enterprisearchitecture.nih.gov" ��http://enterprisearchitecture.nih.gov�


� Existing federal statutes and established best practices will be used to evaluate usability and accessibility.  The following websites provide additional information relating to these guidelines and best practices: �HYPERLINK "www.usability.gov"��www.usability.gov�; �HYPERLINK "www.section508.gov"��www.section508.gov� (buy accessible data center); � HYPERLINK "http://www.itic.org/archives/articles/20040506/voluntary_product_accessibility_templatetm_vpattm.php" ��http://www.itic.org/archives/articles/20040506/voluntary_product_accessibility_templatetm_vpattm.php�.


� Vendor viability will be determined by its financial health, position in the market place, external research  sources, and any market factors that could compromise the vendor’s existence.
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